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Webinar Questions: 
 
1. Regarding interconnection status, can a Cluster 6 project submit a Phase 1 report in lieu of a Phase 2 report 

if the project is the only member of its study group (as described in the Phase 1 report) or if the Phase 1 
study does not identify significant network upgrade requirements? 
 
No.  CPUC decision D. 13-11-024 requires that all bids have the minimum of a completed CAISO Generation 
Interconnection Procedures (GIP) Phase II study or equivalent to bid into PG&E’s RPS RFO.  A Phase I Study 
from Cluster VI is not equivalent, even if the study does not identify any upgrades. 

 
 
2. How much of PG&E’s remaining RPS need is expected to meet the 1,500 GWh requested in this RFO 

process?   When does PG&E expect to conduct the next RFO solicitation to procure additional resources? 
 
PG&E expects to procure up to 1500 GWh in the 2013 RPS RFO.  This represents a portion of PG&E’s remaining 
net short that is required to PG&E to meet its 33% RPS requirement and remain in compliance with that 
requirement after 2020.   We expect to procure additional quantities going forward on an annual basis.  To 
gain a deeper understanding of PG&E’s need and Renewable Net Short calculation, please see Section 6 of 
PG&E’s final 2013 Renewable Procurement Plan filed on December 4, 2013 
(https://www.pge.com/regulation/RenewablePortfolioStdsOIR-
IV/Pleadings/PGE/2013/RenewablePortfolioStdsOIR-IV_Plea_PGE_20131204_292136.pdf). The 
anticipated issuance of the 2014 RPS RFO is expected roughly a year from now.   
 
 

3. Does "prior year" WMDVBE spend necessitate 2013 data? Or is 2012 data accepted given timing of RFO 
submission? 

 
2013 data is not required. Given the January 9th offer submittal date, PG&E recognizes that 2013 data is not 
likely to be available.  2012 recorded data may be provided in the offer form.  The offer form has been 
updated to clarify the year for your spend.   
 
 

4. Is there a limit to the number of variations to each offer? 
 
The total number of offer variations allowed is 8 (inclusive of the base offer).   
 
  

5. If a project has the characteristic that one tranche of its output qualifies as baseload, but other tranches do 
not, should the tranches be bid separately?  E.g., on a 60 MW (nameplate) project, 20 MW is available in at 
least 80% of all hours, and the remaining 40 MW is available less often; in this case, should the 20 MW be 
offered as baseload? 
 
No.   A single physical project should be submitted as single offer which, if selected, would result in a single 
PPA.  When PG&E reviews the projects, we consider how to dispatch, schedule and meter these projects.    We 
expect a 40 MW project to be forecasted, dispatched and schedule with a single meter and a single PPA.   

 
 
6. Where can I get a list of past winners and the size of their projects? 

 
PG&E does not post the winners of the past RFOs.  PG&E files an Advice Letter for each PPA executed with the 
CPUC for approval.  That Advice Letter makes public the counterparty name, size, location, on-line date and 
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the expected output from the project.  The pending advice letter filed by each of the utilities is available on 
the CPUC website in the RPS section of the website.  
 

 
7. In the bid document, you state: "PG&E’s strong preference is for Products from Projects that commence 

renewable energy deliveries to PG&E beginning in 2020 or later.” At the beginning of the call, you stated 
that the Phase II study was a requirement, and timetables were compressed, to allow bidders to take 
advantage of the ITC that expires in 2016.  These times (2020 vs. 2016) appears to conflict with each other. 
 
PG&E’s preference is for projects that begin delivery in 2020 or later because our portfolio is long RPS energy 
for the near future.  The Phase II study requirement was implemented by the CPUC in order to ensure that the 
required network upgrades and associated ratepayer cost responsibility was clear when offers were 
considered.   
 
PG&E is accepting offers with deliveries prior to 2020. If such offer is submitted, the Portfolio Adjusted Value 
(PAV)  will reflect the fact that the offer includes deliveries when PG&E’s portfolio is long RPS energy.   
Alternatively, you may bring your project online prior to 2020, and arrange a short-term sale with a third party 
prior to beginning energy deliveries to PG&E.   PG&E’s PPA include third party option sales that allow you to 
enter into a short-term transaction with another party prior to delivering energy to PG&E. 

 
 
8. Attachment D1, tab “Project Viability Worksheet” appears to contemplate Interconnection Progress that is 

below Phase II. Please confirm that Phase II interconnection (or equivalent, for repowering) is mandatory 
for the current solicitation. 
 
The Phase II interconnection progress is mandatory.  The CPUC did not update the Project Viability worksheet 
for this RFO.    

 
 
9. You stated that a project with storage is not subject to TOD price adjustment.  Is this true regardless of the 

relative scale of the storage to the generation resource?   As an example, would having a 100 kWh storage 
device attached to a 300 MW resource remove the TOD pricing for the entire resource? 
 
Yes.  The reason why we do not have TOD multipliers for storage is because PG&E will control the storage and 
determine the hour when the energy is delivered to the grid.  With that approach, the Seller is not subject to 
losing higher payment and higher TOD factor period because PG&E chooses to put the energy into storage and 
dispatch it later.   

 
 
10. How will PG&E evaluate the expected cost for a non-TOD-eligible resource, compared to a TOD resource? 

 
PG&E’s valuation process considers the expected hourly payment under the PPA compared to the expected 
hourly value of the energy.  If you do not have a TOD adjustment then the hourly payments that we use for 
the net market value calculation will reflect the contract price unadjusted by TOD period.    The evaluation of 
the costs for a resource with TOD-adjusted payments will include the hourly TOD-adjusted cost in the net 
market value.  
 
 
 


